
   

 
 

 

Nottingham City Council 

Commissioning and Procurement Executive Committee 

 
Date: Tuesday, 13 December 2022 
 
Time:  10.00 am 
 
Place: Ground Floor Committee Room - Loxley House, Station Street, Nottingham, 

NG2 3NG 
 
Councillors are requested to attend the above meeting to transact the following 
business 

 
Director for Legal and Governance 
 
Governance Officer: Mark Leavesley     Direct Dial: 0115 8764302 

   
1  Apologies for Absence  

 
 

2  Declarations of Interests  
 

 

3  Minutes  
Last meeting held on 15 November 2022 (for confirmation) 
 

3 - 6 

4  Corporate review of VCS and Financial Vulnerability grants - key 
decision  
Joint report of Corporate Director for Residents Services and Director for 
Procurement and Commissioning 
 

7 - 42 

5  Recommissioning of Independent Advocacy Services for Adults - 
key decision  
Joint report of Corporate Director for People and Director for 
Procurement and Commissioning 
 

43 - 54 

6  Highways Annual Procurement Approval 2023-24 - key decision  
Joint report of Corporate Director for Resident Services and Acting 
Director for Neighbourhood Services 
 

55 - 62 

If you need any advice on declaring an interest in any item on the agenda, please contact 
the Governance Officer shown above, if possible before the day of the meeting  
 

Citizens attending meetings are asked to arrive at least 15 minutes before the start time 
above, and are advised that this meeting may be recorded by members of the public. Any 
recording or reporting on this meeting should take place in accordance with the Council’s 
policy on recording and reporting on public meetings, which is available at 
www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk. Individuals intending to record the meeting are asked to notify 
the Governance Officer shown above in advance.

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

Nottingham City Council  
 

Commissioning and Procurement Executive Committee 
 
Minutes of the meeting held at Loxley House, Station Street, NG2 3NG, on 15 
November 2022 from 10.03 am - 10.15 am 
 
Membership 
 

 

Present Absent 
Councillor Adele Williams (Chair) 
Councillor Toby Neal 
Councillor Linda Woodings 
 

Councillor Cheryl Barnard 
Councillor Sally Longford 
 

Colleagues, partners and others in attendance:  
 
Uzmah Bhatti - Senior Public Health Manager 
Tammy Coles - Public Health Principal 
David Johns - Consultant in Public Health 
Mark Leavesley - Governance Officer 
Steve Oakley - Head of Contracting and Procurement 
Jessica Tomlinson - Public Health Commissioning Lead 
Ceri Walters - Head of Commercial Finance 
 
 
Call-in 
Unless stated otherwise, all decisions are subject to call-in. The last date for call-in is 
25 November 2022. Decisions cannot be implemented until the working day after this 
date. 
 
 
34  Apologies for Absence 

 
Councillor Barnard – other Council business 
Councillor Longford - personal 
 
35  Declarations of Interests 

 
None. 
 
36  Minutes 

 
The Committee agreed the minutes of the last meeting held on 11 October as a 
correct record and they were signed by the Chair. 
 
37  Commissioning of substance misuse treatment and recovery services 

for Nottingham 
 

Councillor Woodings, Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care and Health, introduced 
the report. 
 
Tammy Coles, Public Health Principal, presented the report, and stated the following 

Public Document Pack

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Commissioning and Procurement Executive Committee - 15.11.22 

2 

 
i. in line with NICE and Department of Health guidance, prescribing opioid 

substitution therapy (OST) is a recommended option for maintenance therapy in 
the management of opioid dependence. The guidance recommends that when a 
person starts OST, they should take each dose under the supervision of a nurse, 
doctor or community pharmacist for a minimum of 3 months; 

 
ii. Nottingham City Council commissions community pharmacists to deliver 

supervised consumption for opioid substitution therapy, and there are over 50 
branches across the city providing this service; 

 
iii. a recent report was approved by this Committee for the recommissioning of an 

alcohol and drug treatment and recovery system, but community pharmacy 
provision was not initially identified as being in scope for this recommissioning. 
However, a strategic commissioning review has identified the benefits of 
including community pharmacy provision as part of the re-commissioned system 
of community treatment and recovery services, and this paper requests 
approvals to align and include community pharmacy services accordingly; 

 
iv. ‘supervised consumption’ reduces drug use, injecting, mortality, and offending. It 

maintains a service user’s tolerance for opioids, reducing withdrawal symptoms 
and cravings for opioids. It gives people the stability to focus on broader recovery 
by helping them come off opioids and OST medication altogether. It also reduces 
the risks of overdose or under dosing, diversion of controlled medicines and 
accidental poisonings of children and vulnerable adults; 

 
v. pharmacists have expertise in the use and interaction of medicines. They 

contribute to the treatment and care of patients through liaison with prescribers. 
In the treatment and management of drug use they play a key role in the 
assessment of appropriate levels of supervised consumption, the provision of 
take-home naloxone, and provision of needle exchange services. 

 
Resolved to approve 
 
(1) the inclusion of community pharmacy supervised consumption and other 

appropriate pharmacy led alcohol and drug use interventions in the scope 
of the re-commissioning of community alcohol and drug services, within 
existing delegated approvals for developing the service model, and within 
the procurement process, up to a maximum total cost of £2,689,709; 

 
(2) a 3-month extension to the existing community pharmacy supervised 

consumption contracts, from 1 April 2023 to 30 June 2023, up to a 
maximum total cost of £65,606. 

 
Reasons for recommendations 
 
Recommendation 1 - This is to enable the procurement processes to align and 
maximise the opportunities for multidisciplinary working across the proposed new 
integrated service model. This will optimise outcomes for service users, their families, 
and communities.  
 

Page 4



Commissioning and Procurement Executive Committee - 15.11.22 

3 

Recommendation 2 – to extend these contracts by 3 months during Quarter 1, 
2023/24 to align with the timescales for the procurement of new alcohol and drug use 
treatment and recovery services. 
 
Other options considered 
 
Do nothing and let the service provision end on 31 March 2023 - This is not a viable 
option because there is a clear need for this service in the city to continue to ensure 
the continuity of positive outcomes for people who use opioids. Discontinuation of this 
service could result in an increase in overdose, accidental poisoning, and diversion of 
medication. All of these aspects would increase the burden on other departments 
and organisations such as HM Corner's Office, Nottinghamshire Police, Community 
Protection and local businesses. 
 
A separate procurement exercise for supervised consumption in community 
pharmacy would miss the opportunity to align this provision with other community 
treatment and recovery provision and would not be consistent with the findings of the 
strategic commissioning review. 
 
38  Adjustment of ‘Giving Nottingham Children the Best Start in Life’ 

contract value 
 

Councillor Woodings, Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care and Health, introduced 
the report. 
 
Uzmah Bhatti, Senior Public Health Manager, presented the report, and stated the 
following: 
 
i. Nottingham City Council (NCC) Public Health Department has commissioned 

Nottingham CityCare Partnership Children in Care to deliver the ‘Giving 
Nottingham Children the Best Start in Life’ service in partnership with the NCC 
Early Help Team. The contract period runs for 5 years (1 April 2018 to 31 March 
2023) with an option to extend for two further two-year periods (1 April 2023 to 31 
March 2025 and 1 April 2025 to 31 March 2027); 
 

ii. the Public Health Grant has received an uplift for contracts containing staff on 
‘Agenda for Change’ (AfC) since 2020. At the time, it was unclear if this was a 
one-off uplift or would be applied each year. As a result, a fixed increase was 
agreed with CityCare; 
 

iii. clarification of the process has led to a reassessment of the situation and, as a 
result, NCC have applied the NHS Pay Award Revenue Finance and Contracting 
Guidance and re-calculated an updated contract value for 2022/23 based on 
annual AfC increases (minus efficiency) since 2019/20; 
 

iv. the new contract value for 2022/23 is £10,058,270, an increase of £756,627. This 
new value will be applied for the remainder of the contract (a total cost of 
£3,783,135), funded from the Public Health Grant; 
 

i. it is proposed that the contract value is increased annually by the net uplift figure 
published within the NHS Pay Award Revenue Finance and Contracting 
Guidance (which considers the AfC increase minus efficiencies). It is not possible 
to know this number in advance, but an estimate of 4% has been used to provide 

Page 5



Commissioning and Procurement Executive Committee - 15.11.22 

4 

an estimate of the additional cost over the remainder of the contract 
(£1,708,483). This again will be funded from the Public Health grant. 

 
Resolved 
 
(1) to approve use of £3,783,135 from the Public Health grant to cover an 

increase of £756,627 per annum in the ‘Best Start in Life’ contract from 
2022/23 until 2026/27, should Nottingham City Council enact the option to 
extend its contract (by 2+2 years); 

 
(2) to delegate authority to the Director of Public Health to implement future 

‘Agenda for Change’ uplifts, for the remainder of the contract, in 
accordance with NHS published figures, up to a maximum value of 
£1,708,483. 

 
Reasons for recommendations 
 
A new contract value has been established for the ‘Giving Nottingham Children the 
Best Start in Life’ service using NHS Pay Award Revenue Finance and Contracting 
Guidance since 2018/19 (see appendix 1a); an increase of £756,627 per annum from 
2022/23. This totals £3,026,508 when applied till the end of the contract in March 
2027 and will be funded through the Public Health Grant. 
 
Each year the NHS Pay Award Revenue Finance and Contracting Guidance outlines 
the net uplift after considering a Cost uplift factor and NHS efficiency factor. This 
formula has been used to establish a new contract value for 2022/232 and is 
recommended to be applied each year for the remainder of the contract. 
 
As the NHS net uplift value changes each year, the amount of additional funding that 
will be added to the contract each year till March 2027, is unknown. Using an 
estimate of 4% (based on 2021/22), it is estimated a total £1,708,483 from the public 
health grant will be required to meet Agenda for Change responsibilities and maintain 
service provision between 2022/23 to 2026/27. 
 
Other options considered 
 
Do nothing - This would transfer the financial burden of the additional pay costs to the 
service provider and risk a reduction in service provision to meet the costs of 
delivering the Healthy Child programme. 
 

Page 6



Commissioning and Procurement Executive Committee – 13 December 2022 
  

Subject: Corporate Review of VCS and Financial Vulnerability Grants      
 

Corporate Director/ 
Director: 

Frank Jordan – Corporate Director, Residents Services 
Katy Ball – Director, Procurement and Commissioning 
       

Portfolio Holders: Cllr N Khan – Neighbourhoods, Safety and Inclusion  
Cllr R Langton – Skills, Growth and Economic Development 
Cllr C Barnard – Children, Young People and Schools 
Cllr L Woodings – Adult and Social Care  
 

Report author and 
contact details: 

Louise Graham – VCS Partnerships Manager 
louise.graham@nottinghamcity.gov.uk  
           

Key Decision               X Yes        No Subject to call-in     X Yes           No 

Reasons: X Expenditure  Income  Savings of £750,000 or more 
taking account of the overall impact of the decision 

X Revenue   Capital  

Significant impact on communities living or working in two or more 
wards in the City  

 Yes      No  

Type of expenditure: X Revenue   Capital 
  

Total value of the decision: £2.2m (of which £1.5m is core NCC budget and £0.7m is a 
contribution funded by Public Health) 

Wards affected: All 

Date of consultation with Portfolio Holders: 12.10.22, 17.10.22, 03.11.22, 30.11.22 

Relevant Council Plan Key Outcome:   
Clean and Connected Communities 
Keeping Nottingham Working 
Carbon Neutral by 2028 
Safer Nottingham 
Child-Friendly Nottingham 
Healthy and Inclusive 
Keeping Nottingham Moving 
Improve the City Centre 
Better Housing 
Financial Stability 
Serving People Well 

X 
X 

 
X 
X 
X 

 
 
 

X 
X 

Summary of issues (including benefits to citizens/service users):  
This paper relates to taking a revised approach to grants which total £2,262,672 to the Voluntary 
and Community Sector through: 
 

 Area Based Grants 

 Communities of Identity Grants 

 Specialist Grants 

 Financial Vulnerability Grant 
 
This is made up of £1,528,672 from the general fund and £734,000 from the public health grant. 
The current arrangements end in March 2023.  
 
A corporate review of the focus of the current grants has been undertaken with the Voluntary and 
Community Sector and external funders. This paper proposes a one-year extension to the 
current arrangements with refreshed priorities for the VCS grants for 2023/24. This will provide 
some continuity to providers whilst the review is undertaken.  In addition, a small allocation from 
the budget is proposed to enable a new piece of work to co-produce a new model for 2024/25.  

Page 7

Agenda Item 4

mailto:louise.graham@nottinghamcity.gov.uk


 
This review is framed around our overall strategic framework around prevention and early 
intervention. For example, during 2023, a new 0-25s Early Help offer will be developed which 
sets clear foundations upon which our statutory duties will be set. Furthermore, the review of 
approach of our neighbourhood model is being undertaken and further partnership work on 
Health and Well-Being themes will progress, all requiring integrated partnership approaches. The 
VCS can play a vital role approach to early intervention.  
 
This proposal is subject to revised budget agreements through the current corporate budget 
process. Following the conclusion of this process it will be necessary to review the public health 
grant contribution to ensure it remains a proportionate and eligible use of this ring fenced grant.  
Some of this funding is also used in part as match funding for a European Social Fund grant, 
although no guarantees as to the level of the match have been made beyond April 2023. 
 

Exempt information:  None 

Recommendations:  

1 Note the findings and outcomes of the corporate review that has been undertaken in relation 
to the Council’s allocation and management of grants, as detailed in appendix 1. 

 

2 Agree the extension of the current arrangements (subject to budget level being agreed 
through the Councils current budget process) with the following principles: 

 
- Minimum reduction to the Financial Vulnerability Grant 

 

 Refreshed principles for ABG grants propose to: 
 
- Focus on open access universal service provision for children and young people; 
- Training for staff and support for volunteering ensuring quality provision and 

safeguarding; 
- Continue locally accessible job clubs and jobs fairs to support people into work/training 

or into better employment opportunities; 
- Lead organisations for Area Based Grants and Communities of Identity Grants to 

provide services/advice relating to management and governance, applying for funding, 
managing finances, training and volunteering; 

- Support for the delivery of anticipatory health and well-being activity to help prevent or 
delay people coming into adult social care support and reduce escalation (subject to 
sufficient budget). 
 

3   To agree to the principle of seeking a lead organisation to enable the co-production of a new 
VCS Grants model for 2024/25 (allocating approximately £30k), with a focus on: 

 

 Prevention and early intervention;  

 Maximising opportunities for the VCS to source funding from external sources with an 
emphasis on seeking match funding in any new model; 

 The consideration that any proposed model will fit with existing and developing Council 
strategy and strategic approach to prevention and early intervention, (e.g. geographical 
and themed models that will work best alongside broader City work on potential family 
hubs / neighbourhood models); 

 Strengthened outcomes framework that provides assurance of impact to the Council but is 
felt to be proportionate by the VCS. 

 

4 Agree that the four current grant programmes are consolidated into a single VCS grant 
budget and should sit with a single budget holder from April 2023.  

 

 
Page 8



1. Reasons for recommendations  
 
1.1 In 2012 Nottingham first developed the geographical and thematic partnership 

programmes of Area Based and Communities of Identity Grants. Prior to this, 
arrangements had not been reviewed for 10 years. The current round of  
agreements with providers comes to an end in March 2023. 
 

1.2 A commissioning review by a corporate working group has been undertaken during 
2022. The grant providing support for externally delivered financial support and advice 
was also included in this review. The review asked both internal and external 
stakeholders to consider which priorities should be supported and identify the 
preferred delivery model. 
 

1.3 The total budget allocated is £2.26M. 
 
Grant programme Delivery model Total 

Amount 
NCC 

Revenue 
External 

contribution 

Area Based Grants 
 

Within 
neighbourhoods 

906,216 1,121,684 328,000 Public 
Health 

Communities of 
Identity Grants 

City wide 381,664 

Specialist Grants 
 

City wide 161,804 

Financial Vulnerability City wide and 
within 
neighbourhoods 

812,988 406,988 406,000 Public 
Health 

£ Total 2,262,672 1,528,672 734,000 

Table 1 – VCS Grants budget 
 

1.4 This review has included consultation with the current grant funded organisations, the 
wider Voluntary and Community Sector, internal key stakeholders, external funders 
and other local authorities to understand other approaches to VCS grants. The results 
of this review identified the following priorities for the future direction of the allocation 
of grants: 

 

 Continued support for the financially vulnerable including the provision of welfare 
rights and benefits advice, as well as those newly affected by the cost of living 
crisis. 

 Delivering universal provision for children and young people as well as support for 
training of staff and volunteers, ensuring quality provision and safeguarding of all 
participants. 

 Support for the provision of locally accessible job clubs and job fairs to help people 
into employment and training. These should also support people already in work 
with better employment opportunities as we move from match funding from 
European Social Fund to Shared Prosperity Fund sources. 

 Help support the sector through the provision of services relating to management 
and governance, applying for funding, managing finances, training and volunteering. 

 Support for the delivery of anticipatory health and well-being activity to help prevent 
or delay people coming into adult social care support and reduce escalation (subject 
to sufficient budget). 
 

(See Appendix 1 – SCR VCS Grants Presentation)  
(See Appendix 3 – SCR VCS Grants Survey Summary)  

 
1.5  This proposal ensures that grants are responsive to the current context of the cost of 

living crisis and pressures on social care for 2023/24 and that time and creativity for a 
Page 9



future model from 2024/25 can be developed. National and local thinking about how 
people can be better supported in the community, supporting a sustainable Voluntary 
and Community Sector in the City, and building the important relationship of the VCS 
within current approaches to tackle health inequalities through prevention and early 
intervention are all key elements to a future model. 

 

1.6 This work has been undertaken as a corporate endeavour supported by departments 
which are directly affected by funded VCS activity and will be directed by colleagues 
from all areas affected by these funding streams.  

 
1.7 Services provided through this funding must feed into both existing and developing 

Council strategy and policy (eg providers of universal youth and play services should 
contribute to the Early Help Strategy currently being developed). 

 
1.8 As the Council makes or adopts changes to strategic frameworks in the future, the 

VCS, through this funding, must support the implementation of such changes.  
 
1.9 A co-production approach to the future model should be led by the sector, capitalising 

on the reach and trust with communities and seeking collective use of resources to 
maximise impact. The Council will work alongside the sector, providing data on need 
and supporting the setting of priorities. This will support development of options that 
consider how best to tailor resources and approaches with a best value lens. 

 
1.10 An appropriate performance management framework for the future model should also 

be co-produced. This will need to provide assurance of impact to the Council, feel 
proportionate to the sector, and be able to demonstrate longer-term benefits to 
citizens. There may be opportunities to make changes to broader commissioned 
services, where there is duplication with provision through the grants. 
 
(See Appendix 1 – SCR VCS Grants Presentation)  
(See Appendix 4 – SCR VCS Grants Market Intelligence) 
 

2. Background(including outcomes of consultation) 
 

2.1 The grants programme currently has a combined budget of £2.26M (of which 
£734,000 is public health grant funded). The VCS grants of Area Based and 
Communities of Identity include a public health contribution of up to 20% (based on 
previous years budgets). Support to the financially vulnerable is match funded by 50%, 
also from Public Health. It is also used in part as match funding for a European Social 
Fund grant, although no guarantees as to the level of match have been made beyond 
April 2023.  Therefore, any reduction in VCS Grants will also require a review of the 
public health grant contribution to ensure it remains a proportionate and eligible use of 
this ring fenced grant. Public Health will proactively engage in the co-production 
activity to ensure opportunities for improving health and well being outcomes through 
the VCS are maximised and funded accordingly. The European Social Fund Grant that 
match funds elements of employment and skills activity will also be affected by 
reductions in the VCS grant budget.  
  

2.2  Opportunities for potential future combining of funding programmes exists alongside 
health partners, particularly Place Based Partnerships for Nottingham. This funding 
needs to be considered as part of a wider scheme of investment by the Council into 
the VCS, for example the Shared Prosperity Fund offer and other Levelling Up 
opportunities that may arise in the future. Other opportunities for use of the VCS grant 
as match funding against external sources such as Lottery funded programmes will 
also be pursued.   
 

Page 10



2.3  Area Based Grant is used as match funding for two European Social Fund projects 
that support both external and internal delivery of employment and skills activities until 
November 2023. £85k of match funding from Area Based Grant generates £363k of 
investment annually in the form of match. This will be protected in the extended 
arrangements in 2023-24, dependent on corporate budget allocations to the fund. 

 
2.4 This work has been undertaken as a corporate endeavour supported by all 

departments which are directly affected by funded VCS activity and will be directed by 
colleagues from all areas affected by these funding streams.  

 
3. Other options considered in making recommendations 
 

3.1 There have been three headline options considered to support these 
recommendations. Options are dependent on the current budget process. 

 
3.2 Option 1 is to keep the current arrangements in place as they are for future years, 

however as outlined in the report there is an opportunity to redesign the model for the 
commissioning and allocation of grants to improve the benefits derived for the local 
communities and therefore this option is not recommended.  

 

3.3 Option 2 is to cease the grants altogether from the Council’s approach to supporting 
communities.  However, there is considerable value in maintaining a grants 
programme to support the council’s strategic approach of engaging with and enabling 
communities in way that leads to early intervention and supports improved outcomes.  

 

3.4 Option 3 is to remodel the approach to the commissioning of grants in way that is co-
produced with the voluntary and community sector and to align this with the council’s 
strategic approach to engaging with and enabling communities.  It is to be noted that 
the total value of the budget to be set for this would follow the budget setting process 
of the council.  This is the preferred and recommended option. 

 
4. Consideration of Risk 

 
4.1 One year grant arrangements create uncertainty for the VCS and difficulty recruiting 

to and retaining posts. Building transparency in the co-production process and earlier 
signalling of future arrangements will help. 

 
5. Finance colleague comments (including implications and value for money/VAT) 

 
5.1 The proposed one-year extension for financial year 2023-24 and re-allocation of the 

funding is within the current existing budgets for the grant programmes as detailed 
below.  
 

5.2 This extension is based on the latest figures in the 2022-23 budget, however, this is 
subject to the current 2023-24 budget review process and could therefore be subject 
to change thereby reducing the value of the funding available for this purpose in the 
2023-24 financial year.  Additionally, the Public Health Funding review exercise 
currently being undertaken could have implications to the funding available and this 
could increase and / or decrease the contribution based on future budget decisions 
and direct communications. 
 

5.3 A review of this activity in general is still being undertaken and longer-term 
arrangements put in place moving forward in 2023+, ensuring value for money is 
sought for the organisation. The grants will need to be subject to a full monitoring 
process ensuring adherence to the Public Health grant conditions and ensuring that 

Page 11



the desired outcomes are achieved.  Area Based Grant £0.906m, Communities of 
Identity Grant £0.382m Specialist Grant Funding £0.162m with Community Protection 
and the Financial Vulnerability Grant £0.813m within Commissioning as confirmed by 
the author. 

 

5.4 TOTAL GRANT £2.263m (subject to change dependant on budget setting process 
and Public Health review) 
 
Susan Turner, Senior Commercial Business Partner - 1 December 2022 
 

6. Legal colleague comments 
 

Section 137 of the Local Government Act (LGA) 1972 authorises a local council to 
spend money for the direct benefit of its area, or part of its area, or all or some of its 
inhabitants.  Furthermore, the public sector equality duty (specific duty) requires the 
Council to consider how it can positively contribute to the advancement of equality and 
good relations and demonstrate that it is paying ‘due regard’ in its decision making in 
the design of policies and in the delivery of services. 
 
Legal will continue to advise as required in the delivery of the one year extension and 
any contractual arrangements that need to be put in place to support the proposed 
strategy and the creation of any lead organisation as necessary. 
 
Benita Meehan, Solicitor, Contacts and Commercial - 2 December 2022 
 

7. Other relevant comments 
 
7.1 Procurement colleague comments 

 
This report makes proposals relating to grant funding for Voluntary and Community 
Sector organisations for the provision of financial vulnerability services, following a 
corporate review. It seeks a one-year extension to the current arrangements and 
approval of principles for a future revised approach, including seeking a lead 
organisation for the co-production of a new Grants model from 2024/25. The aim is to 
ensure an effective model and that citizens’ needs are met in the context of the 
current cost of living crisis. 
 
As these arrangements are grant funding and not services contracts, they are not 
subject to the UK Procurement Regulations or the requirements of the Council’s 
Contract Procedure Rules and therefore there are no procurement issues arising. 
Any new awards of grant funding should be through a fair and open application 
process and appropriate agreements should be established.  

 
Jo Pettifor, Category Manager, Strategy & People - 22 November 2022 
 

7.2  Public Health colleague comments 
 
Public health recognise the tremendous role that the voluntary and community sector 
(VCS) play in improving health and wellbeing outcomes for our local communities. 
Our health and wellbeing is impacted by a wide range of factors, including those 
supported via this grant funding. Notably the importance of good financial wellbeing 
to our overall health is highlighted via its inclusion as one of four priorities in the Joint 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy for Nottingham 2022-25. For these reasons public 
health grant makes a proportionate contribution to the grants schemes, as detailed in 
this report, to support the delivery of activity which contributes towards improving 

Page 12



health and wellbeing. This is in line with the conditions of the ring-fenced public 
health grant. Any significant changes to the grant scheme, either in value or purpose, 
will require the public health grant contribution to be reviewed to ensure that it 
remains an eligible use of the funding. Public health will proactively engage in the co-
production work which is due to take place to ensure opportunities for improving 
health and wellbeing outcomes through these grant schemes and in conjunction with 
the VCS are maximised and funded accordingly. 
 
Nancy Cordy, Senior Public Health Manager - 30 November 2022 

 
8. Crime and Disorder Implications (If Applicable) 
 
8.1 Not applicable. 
 
9. Social value considerations (If Applicable) 
 
9.1 The Procurement Strategy objectives for promoting social value will be applied within 

this programme, including considering how small VCS organisations are supported 
and encouraged to form part of the delivery. 

 
10. Regard to the NHS Constitution (If Applicable) 
 
10.1 Not applicable. 

  
11. Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) 
 
11.1 An EIA is not required because at this point, approval is being sought to research 

and consult to determine the best model to take forward the VCS grants provision. 
No significant change will be experienced by current delivery other than potential 
budget reductions brought about by the setting of the Council budget for 2023-24 
(which will be included elsewhere as part of the budget setting process).  
 
An EIA will be undertaken to measure the equality impact of any proposals once a 
new model and priorities have been determined and to help frame the new grants 
programme going forward in 2024.  

 
12. Data Protection Impact Assessment (DPIA) 
 
12.1 A DPIA is not required because no changes will be undertaken in the way that data is 

handled and managed. 
 

13. Carbon Impact Assessment (CIA) 
 
13.1 A CIA is not required because no changes will be undertaken that will impact on 

carbon assessment. 
 
14. List of background papers relied upon in writing this report (not including 

published documents or confidential or exempt information) 
 

None. 
 

15. Published documents referred to in this report 
 
15.1 None. 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



VCS GRANTS

Strategic Commissioning Review

• Internal Stakeholder consultations – Slide 2

• Survey Results – Slides 3 & 4

• What are other Las’ doing? – Slide 5

• Current Spend – Slide 6 & 7

• Options inc main benefits and risks - Slides 8 & 9

• Grant Models & Principles of Good Grant Making – Slides 10 to 13

• Research documents – Slide 14

P
age 15



Internal Stakeholder Consultation

Survey summary fed back to:

• Communities – H of S
• Customer Services – H of S
• Youth and Play – Operations Manager
• Economic Development  - Partnerships Manager 
• Public Health – PH Consultant
• Adult Social Care – Director 

Key Points

• Support for both city wide and 
locality based delivery

• Recognition of need for 
overarching delivery priorities 
tailored to local areas

• Links to Council Plan and Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy

• Early intervention approach 
preferred

P
age 16



Summary of Survey Results

PRIORITIES

• Top priorities:

• 38% Universal youth provision

• 36% Support for VCS core costs rather than delivery 

• 34% Support for access to financial advice and 

support

• 31% Support for VCS Infrastructure

• 53% believe grants connected to Nottingham Plan and 

H&WB Strategy

• 97% believe in continuing grant support for VCS

• Balanced response between supporting

• Existing priorities and newly identified issues

• Early intervention services to meet immediate need

RESPONDENTS

• 74 usable responses

• 80% represented an organisation

• 9 responses from NCC colleagues

• Size of represented organisations ranged from large VCS 

to small community groups

• Respondents varied from CEO’s, Trustees to staff and 

volunteers

MODEL 

• 57% supportive of city wide offer for specialist services 

such as infrastructure

• Mixed responses for targeted services or a generic offer 

(e.g. should we fund COI)

• Locally owned, geographical delivery felt to offer better 

outcomes and understanding of local need

• Citizens do not recognise (or care about)  NCC boundaries

• Supportive of partnership working but feel current model 

is more an administrative function rather than 

development of real partnerships

P
age 17



Key Themes

Health and 

Wellbeing

Advice and 

Support

Employment and 

Skills

Children and 

Young People

VCS Infrastructure

Support for 

targeted local 

cohorts

Connecting to 

your community 

– staying well

Training

Safeguarding

Quality Mark

Welfare rights, 

benefits and 

financial advice

Job fairs

Job Clubs

Group Support

Finance Governance

Volunteers

Universal Offer

P
age 18



Local Authorities and VCS Grants

• Most LAs’ continue to fund the VCS through a grant programme

• The scale of programmes varies from £380k (Leicestershire /                                       
Cambridgeshire) to over £2M (Liverpool) however most are around                                                             
£1M Nottinghamshire as our closest neighbour have approx £1.5M

• All other LAs’ fund individual organisations rather than use a consortia                                                
model like Nottingham. Partnerships can bid but are not required

• Most other LAs’ have a model of a number of different funding programmes against priorities 
such as children and young people, environment, cultural activity, health and wellbeing, capital 
projects, support for refugees, support for older people etc 

• Most LAs’ fund VCS infrastructure organisations in the form of CVS’s and Voluntary Action Centres 

• Grant timescales vary with most LAs’ offering 12 month funding for smaller projects but larger 
programmes can be funded for up to 4 years. 

• Only one authority did not have a grant scheme (Leicester), having moved to a contracting model 
for services delivered by the VCS

P
age 19



Current Spend Breakdown 1

Area Based Grant Communities of Identity Grant
Reactive 

3%

Management Fee

6%

Children and 

Young 

People

45%

Employment & 

Skills Offer

34%

Small Group 

Support

9%

Locally Identified 

Need

3%

Management Fee

Information

, Advice and 

Guidance

Building Skills and 

Confidence

Empowerment 

Individuals  

ESOL and 

conversational 

English 

Support for people 

from traumatic 

backgrounds 

Support for young 

people and families 

Support for 

isolated 

individuals 

Support for 

volunteers 

Support for 

vulnerable people or 

people at risk

Provision of safe 

space

Basic needs support 

Small group support 

P
age 20



Current Spend Breakdown 2

IAG

Children, Young 

People and 

Families

Employment and 

Training

Building 

Skills and 

Confidence

VCS Support

Management Fee

Community spaces

Vulnerable or at 

risk people
Locally Identified 

Need

£ - Total

Minority communities 66,472

Refugees and asylum seekers 59,864

Financially vulnerable 774,482

Minority communities 4,361

Universal offer 406,918

309,541

Minority communities 153,592

ESOL 56,680

Financial infrastructure 46,048

Volunteers 11,382

Small group support 84,778

123,858

82,688

Traumatic backgrounds 6,062

 Minority communities 17,593

46,435

210,272

142,208

23,655

Breakdown of spend

Building Skills and Confidence

Children, Young People and Families

VCS Support

Management Fee

Community spaces

Vulnerable or at risk people

Locally Identified Need

Employment and Training

IAG

900,818

411,279

P
age 21



OPTION 1

Cease supporting VCS grants

Benefits

• Saving of £2.3M

Risks

• Increased impact from cost of 

living crisis with no welfare rights 

and advice support offered across 

city 

• Increased pressure on targeted 

youth services and family services.

• Increased pressure on ASB and 

gang and youth violence provision.

• Lower levels of ambition and 

opportunities for progression for 

Nottingham citizens.

• Increased unemployment or 

reduced provision for improved 

employment opportunities (e.g. 

zero hour contracts)

• Reputational risk to NCC

Option 2 - Examples

1. FUND services around financial 
vulnerability, universal provision 
for children and young people, 
job clubs and job fairs, 
infrastructure support for VCS.
DO NOT fund services 
specifically tailored to 
Communities of Identity but 
embed these in general delivery. 

2. FUND Financial Vulnerability 
services and infrastructure 
support for the VCS that includes 
help with applying for funding 
from other sources
DO NOT fund geographical or 
themed grants such as ABG or 
COI.

3. FUND ONLY services around 
financial vulnerability given 
growing cost of living crisis.

OPTION 2 

Reduce support to key area’s only

Benefits

• Saving dependent on level of 

reduction

• Target only key areas for support 

as identified through consultation, 

Council Plan and Health and 

Wellbeing Strategy

• Move to three locality model with 

targeted services

• Utilise early intervention approach

Risks

• Reduced budget = reduced level of 

services putting most vulnerable at 

risk

• Increased pressure on key delivery 

partners across Nottingham 

• Lack of investment may increase 

future need for support

• Reputational risk to NCC

P
age 22



OPTION 4

Reshape support at current level

Benefits

• Reshape grant programmes to 

reflect current need across 

Nottingham

• Refocus investment on key areas 

for support

• Move to three locality model with 

targeted services

• Utilise early intervention approach

• Reduce potential future spending 

by Council on more expensive 

interventions

Risks

• No identified savings to Council 

budget

Option 3 – Examples

FUND priorities as identified 

through consultation and 

engagement activity and identified 

in slide 4 - Themes

ADVICE AND SUPPORT

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE

VCS INFRASTRUCTURE

EMPLOYMENT AND SKILLS

HEALTH AND WELLBEING

DO NOT FUND other elements 

currently supported through the 

Area Based Grant Programme and 

the Communities of Identity Grant 

Programme. Embed COI principles 

within all grant delivery. 

Benefits

• Investing in VCS as a true and 

equal partner 

• Building stronger relationship with 

VCS 

• Could be undertaken as 

contractual arrangement

• Less internal capacity required for 

monitoring and payments

• Aligned to the council priorities to 

be revised as appropriate.

Risks

• Reputational risk to NCC

• Risk of relationship damage within 

VCS

OPTION 3

Outsource delivery of VCS Grants

P
age 23



Grant Making Model 

City wide offer -

• Financially vulnerable, welfare 
rights and benefits

• VCS infrastructure support

• Children and young people 

- Safeguarding

- Training

- Quality mark

• Health and Wellbeing support 
for targeted cohorts 

- e.g. Refugees/asylum 
seekers 

Locality offer -

Based on three locality model 
identified by Communities Service. 
Offering a universal offer across all 
three localities that is tailored to 
specific needs within individual 
neighbourhoods and communities 

• Children and Young People 
universal offer

• Employment and skills job clubs 
and fairs

• Targeted communities

• Health and Wellbeing

- Connecting to your 
community / staying 
well

P
age 24



Models across other Local Authorities

Contract rather than grant

• Easier to set and measure outcomes

• Delivered by national and regional charities rather than 

local VCS

• Good for large scale delivery of particular service but not 

used for local provision

Early Intervention approach

• All delivery must evidence how it reduces future need for 

services

• Reduces the future burden on councils

• Does not address immediate need of citizens

• No safety net for emerging urgent need

Individual grants to VCS organisations

• Greater control and oversight by LA

• Ability to target specific needs/issues within areas

• Labour intensive and would require increased staff team

Best Practice
The decision on what activity to fund is subjective. It differs

across the country based on the principles and priorities of

each local authority, the many different layers of

disadvantage of the area and the availability of budget from

the authority.

The model used is once again subjective with some

authorities preferring to fund individual organisations, some

funding consortia and some preferring a contracting route.

There is no right or wrong methodology in choosing

priorities and model. Grant making best practice can be

employed once priorities and a model have been chosen, for

example a clear and robust application process with agreed

application windows, transparent assessment and decision

making, and the agreement of clear outcomes and

monitoring processes.

P
age 25



Principles of good grant making 1
Three assumptions of good grant making

• That a strong civil society will contain the means to enable organisations to grow and develop independently and that 

funding systems need to support and not frustrate this development

• That those making grants have an interest in doing this effectively

• That the nature of the relationship between the funder and the funded body will have an impact on the effectiveness of 

both organisations

Design of a framework for funding programmes
• What is the councils motivation as a funder?
• What impact does the council desire?

- Belief that front line services need to be delivered 
close to beneficiaries

- Belief that VCS organisations add value on very 
particular ways

- Belief the skills to deliver the chosen services occur 
outside the Council

- Consider it part of the councils charitable objectives to 
develop the capacity of particular communities

P
age 26



Principles of good grant making 2
Types of funding programmes

• Reactive – responsive to applications, interested in best 

proposals 

• Interventionist – wishing to have impact on a particular issue/ 

area

• Compensatory – wishing to make good on deficiencies

Example of different funding programmes

Funding Intent

• Maintenance of activities and services – keeping good things going

• Building organisations – best way of delivering objectives is through a 

strong VCS

• Changing systems – Research and delivery to stimulate change with 

emphasis on information gathering 

P
age 27



R
e

s
e

a
rc

h
 D

o
c
u

m
e

n
ts

• Strategic Commissioning Review – Voluntary and Community Sector Grants 

• Strategic Council Plan 2021-23

strategic-council-plan-2021-23_final.pdf (nottinghamcity.gov.uk)

• Nottingham City Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2022-25 

nottingham-city-joint-health-and-wellbeing-strategy-2022-25.pdf (nottinghamcity.gov.uk)

Health & Wellbeing Board – Nottingham City Health & Wellbeing Board (healthynottingham.co.uk)

• Youth Review (Levelling Up)

Youth Review: Summary findings and government response - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)

• Youth Investment Fund

Youth Investment Fund (YIF) - places selection methodology - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)

• D2Ns ESF Provision May 2022

• IPS Launch Letter

• UK Shared Prosperity Fund (Levelling Up)

UK Shared Prosperity Fund: prospectus - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)

UK Shared Prosperity Fund: overview (1) - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)

• Summary of results – VCS Grant Funding Survey: Future Funding

• VCS Grants SCR – Summary of Stakeholder Responses

• Julia Unwin – The Grant Making Tango  The grantmaking tango: issues for funders - The Baring Foundation

P
age 28



Strategic Commissioning Review   
Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) Grants 
 
Sponsor -  Frank Jordan, Corporate Director Resident Services  
Value -    £2.3M 

 
1. Commissioning Plan Stage 1 (2022-23) 

Stage Time 
line 

Activity Key Decisions / Actions Who is 
involved 

Support 
Tools 

A
n

a
ly

s
e

 

Done Partners and 
colleague 
engagement 
 

Agree scope and ensure 
participation  
Survey stakeholders, internal 
colleagues and external groups  
Correlate data to identify key 
priorities and preferred delivery 
models 
Consultation with core cites / 
other LA’s to gain market 
intelligence, consider / 
understand alternative funding 
mechanisms used  

Commissioning 
Sponsor 
Stakeholders 
Market 

Community 
Research  
 
Best Practice  
 
Other 
learning 

Done Survey to identify 
initial priorities and 
preferred model 

Commissioning 
Stakeholders 
Market 

Done Market Intelligence  
 
 

Commissioning 

Done Stakeholder 
discussions 
 

Commissioning 
Stakeholders 

P
la

n
 

Done Present to Sponsor 
 

Presentation of findings and 
recommend options for 
proceeding  
Agreement by Sponsor and CLT 
whether to continue and if yes to 
gain approval to move forward 
with vision and process 
 
Presentation to Leadership to 
discuss future policy direction 
 
Clarity regarding budget 
contributions available from 
Public Health 
Brief Portfolio Holder regarding 
CPEC report 
Clarity regarding outcomes 
around FV and E&S discussed 
with Deputy Leader 
 
Information session with existing 
funded organisations 
 
Presentation of mtg outcomes 
with corporate review group  
 
Committee approval  

Commissioning 
Sponsor 

Presentation 
documents 
 
Report 
template 
 
 

Done Options clarified for 
presentation to CLT 
 

Commissioning 

01.11.22 Presentation to CLT 
by sponsor 
 

Sponsor 

03.11.22 Presentation to 
Leadership 
 

Sponsor 

15.11.22 Discussion with 
Public Health 
 

Commissioning 

Wc 
21.11.22 

Brief Portfolio Holder Commissioning 

29.11.22 Discussions with 
Deputy Leader  
 

Commissioning 
Internal 
Stakeholders 

01.12.22 
onwards 
 

Market Engagement 
with stakeholders 
and sector 

Commissioning 
Stakeholders 
Market 

Wc 
05.12.22 

Corporate review 
group mtg 
 

Sponsor 
Commissioning 
Stakeholders 

13.12.22 CPEC 
 

Committee 

D
o

 

21.12.22 Notification and SLA 
process 

Development of SLA with delivery 
partners 
Advertise for expressions of 
interest for co-production partner 
 
Corporate review mtg to agree 
successful co-production partner 
 

Commissioning Grant 
management 
procedures 03.01.23 Open EOI stage for 

co-production 
Commissioning 

03.02.23 Close of EOI process Commissioning 

Wc 
06.02.23 

Corporate review 
group mtg 

Sponsor 
Commissioning 
Internal 
Stakeholders 

27.02.23 Co-production work 
begins 

Commissioning 

03.04.23 Delivery of VCS 
grants commences 

Market 

Page 29



R
e
v
ie

w
 Wc 

03.07.23 
Performance review Review after three months to see 

if co production process 
identifying outcomes  

Commissioning 
Sponsor 

Performance 
management 
procedures 

 
 
2. Commissioning Plan Stage 2 (2023-24) 

Stage Time 
line 

Activity Key Decisions / Actions Who is 
involved 

Support 
Tools 

A
n

a
ly

s
e

 

March 
onwards 

Co-production 
process with VCS 
 

Identify process and model to 
best support VCS to deliver 
services  

Commissioning 
Sponsor 
Stakeholders 
Market 

Community 
Research  
 
Best Practice  
 
Other 
learning 

P
la

n
 

April 2023 Interim results 
presented to 
sponsor and 
corporate review mtg 

Presentation of findings and 
recommend options for 
proceeding  
 
Agreement by Sponsor whether 
to continue and if yes to gain 
approval to move forward with 
vision and process 
 
Presentation through standard 
approval routes 
 
 
Firm / complete process and 
priorities and gain committee 
approval  

Commissioning 
Sponsor 
Stakeholders 

Presentation 
documents 
 
Report 
template 
 
 

May 
2023 

Present to Director, 
Sponsor and 
corporate review mtg 

Sponsor 
Commissioning 
Internal 
Stakeholders 

June 2023 Options clarified for 
presentation to CLT 
 

Sponsor 
Commissioning 

July 
203 

Presentation to CLT 
by sponsor 
 

Sponsor 
Commissioning 

July 2023 Presentation to 
Leadership by 
sponsor 

Sponsor 
Commissioning 

Aug 
2023 

CPEC 
 
 

Committee 

D
o

 

September 
2023 

Launch new 
programme 

Launch new VCS programme 
dependent on outcomes of co-
production with VCS. 
 
Time allowed for application and 
assessment process if this is the 
outcome of the co-production 
process 
 
Support tools based on chosen 
models 

Commissioning Grant 
management 
procedures 
 
Procurement 
procedures  

April 2024 Delivery 
Commences 
 

Market 

R
e
v
ie

w
 October 

2024 
Performance review Review after six months to see if 

new programme meeting 
outcomes and impacts  

Commissioning 
Sponsor 

Performance 
management 
procedures 

 
KEY  Commissioning-  Karla Banfield/Louise Graham 
   Stakeholders -  As identified on following page  

Market -   VCS as identified on following page 
Sponsor -  Corp Director, Residents Services and officers within this 

service structure 
Committee -  Commissioning and Procurement Executive Committee 

 
 
3. Governance Map 

Commissioning Team 
 

 Sponsor 
Corporate Director – 
Resident Services  

 CLT 
 

 Commissioning and 
Procurement Exec 
Committee 

 
 

  
 

    
Page 30



 
KEY  - Commissioning and Procurement 
  - Resident Services / Community Protection 
  - Key Decision-making points 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4. Stakeholders and Market 

 

Director - 
Commissioning & 
Procurement 

 Director - 
Community 
Protection 

 Approval to proceed 
OR amendments 
return to sponsor 

 Delegated approval to 
Director - Community 
Protection 

   
 
 

    

  Portfolio Holder 
 

    

Stakeholders  VCS Consultation – Key Groups 
Internal Officers  
Public Health (Lucy Hubber/Nancy Cordy/Helen Johnstone) 
Community Protection (Andrew Errington/Shaun Miles) 
Adult Health & Social Care (Sara Storey) 
Children’s Integrated Services (Wilf Fearon/Jacqui Thomas) 
Economic Development & Property (Paul Crookendale)  
Customer Services (Lucy Lee) 
Portfolio Holder – Neighbourhoods, Safety, Inclusion 
Portfolio Holder – Children, Young People, Schools  

 

 Nottingham CVS    
Area Based Grant Leads   
Communities of Identity Grant Leads 
  
Self Help Nottingham  
Nottingham Financial Resilience Partnership 
Nottingham Food Partnership 
Nottingham Together Board 
Local Area Partnerships 
Vulnerable Adults Providers Network 
Children and Young Peoples Providers Network 
One Nottingham VCS Strategy Board 
Active Nottingham Partnership 
 

External partners      
VCS (see right)  
Nottingham & Notts Violence Reduction Unit 
Nottinghamshire OPCC 
Equalities Board 

 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



VCS GRANTS

Strategic Commissioning Review

Appendix 3

Grants Survey Results

P
age 33



Survey Basis

The survey was sent to both internal and external contacts within, and 

working with the Voluntary and Community Sector. 

Respondents were asked questions that identified their thoughts on 

priorities for investment through grants and their preferences around a 

model for delivery. 

The following pages highlight the responses received and summarise 

the most common comments.

The first six questions reflect choice around funding priorities, the last 

five questions discuss the funding model.

P
age 34



Summary of Survey Results

PRIORITIES

• Top priorities:

• 38% Universal youth provision

• 36% Support for VCS core costs rather than delivery 

• 34% Support for access to financial advice and 

support

• 31% Support for VCS Infrastructure

• 53% believe grants connected to Nottingham Plan and 

H&WB Strategy

• 97% believe in continuing grant support for VCS

• Balanced response between supporting

• Existing priorities and newly identified issues

• Early intervention services to meet immediate need

RESPONDENTS

• 74 usable responses

• 80% represented an organisation

• 9 responses from NCC colleagues

• Size of represented organisations ranged from large VCS 

to small community groups

• Respondents varied from CEO’s, Trustees to staff and 

volunteers

MODEL 

• 57% supportive of city wide offer for specialist services 

such as infrastructure

• Mixed responses for targeted services or a generic offer 

(e.g. should we fund COI)

• Locally owned, geographical delivery felt to offer better 

outcomes and understanding of local need

• Citizens do not recognise (or care about)  NCC boundaries

• Supportive of partnership working but feel current model 

is more an administrative function rather than 

development of real partnerships

P
age 35



P
age 36



For the following questions the scoring scale is as below:

Not important = 1 Very Important = 5

P
age 37



(Open response question)

P
age 38



For the following questions the scoring scale is as below:

Not important = 1 Very Important = 5

P
age 39



P
age 40



P
age 41



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Commissioning and Procurement Executive Committee - 13 December 2022 
  

Subject: Recommissioning of Independent Advocacy Services for 
Adults 
 

Corporate Director/ 
Director: 

Catherine Underwood – Corporate Director of People 
Katy Ball – Director Commissioning and Partnerships 
  

Portfolio Holder: Cllr Linda Woodings, Adults and Health 
 

Report author and 
contact details: 

Melody Hinds – Commissioning Officer 
melody.hinds@nottinghamcity.gov.uk       

Other colleagues who 
have provided input: 

 

Key Decision               Yes        No Subject to call-in      Yes          
 No 

Reasons:  Expenditure  Income  Savings of £750,000 or more 
taking account of the overall impact of the decision 

 Revenue  
 Capital  

Significant impact on communities living or working in two or more 
wards in the City  

 Yes      No  

Type of expenditure:  Revenue   Capital 
:  

Total value of the decision: £2,322,342 

Wards affected: All 

Date of consultation with Portfolio Holder: 13.12.22 

Relevant Council Plan Key Outcome:   
Clean and Connected Communities 
Keeping Nottingham Working 
Carbon Neutral by 2028 
Safer Nottingham 
Child-Friendly Nottingham 
Healthy and Inclusive 
Keeping Nottingham Moving 
Improve the City Centre 
Better Housing 
Financial Stability 
Serving People Well 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Summary of issues (including benefits to citizens/service users):  
Local Authorities are under several statutory duties to provide Independent Advocacy 
Services for Adults. The current Independent Advocacy Service for Adults was jointly 
commissioned by Nottinghamshire County Council and Nottingham City Council and is 
delivered by POhWER. The service is known as ‘Your Voice, Your Choice’.  
 
The contract expires, following earlier extensions, on 30 September 2023.The current 
services therefore need to be re-commissioned. Nottinghamshire County Council will be 
the lead authority on procurement of the recommissioned services. It is proposed to enter 
a Collaboration Agreement with Nottingham City, which sets out the framework for 
collaboration and outlines each partner’s roles and responsibilities in the 
recommissioning.  
 
Executive approval is required for the City Council’s spend of the allocated budget, 
entering into a Collaboration Agreement, engaging in a joint tender process and entering 
an appropriate single provider framework agreement and call-off agreements with the 
successful provider. 

Page 43

Agenda Item 5

mailto:melody.hinds@nottinghamcity.gov.uk


 

Exempt information:  None 

Recommendations:  

1 To approve to undertake a tender process for a single provider framework to deliver 
Independent Advocacy Services for Adults until September 2032 through a 5 year 
framework with the option to call off for a further 4 years at the end of the initial 
contract period and to approve the associated budget of £2,322,342. 

      

2 To delegated authority to the Director of Commissioning and Partnerships to enter into 
a Collaborative Agreement with Nottinghamshire County Council for the 
recommissioning of Independent Advocacy Services for Adults. 

      

3 To delegate authority to the Director of Commissioning and Partnerships to approve 
and award the outcome of the tender process for the Independent Advocacy Service 
for Adults. 

 

4   To delegate authority to the Head of Procurement to enter into an appropriate 
Framework Agreement and to award and sign call-off contracts. 

      

 
1. Reasons for recommendations  

 
1.1 Councils have a statutory responsibility to ensure the availability of advocacy 

services for vulnerable adults. These are jointly commissioned at present with 
Nottinghamshire County Council. The current contract ensures both authorities 
advocacy requirements are met but it expires in September 2023 following previous 
extensions. Both Nottingham City and Nottinghamshire County Council need to 
recommission the provision of services after September 2023.  

 
1.2 The purpose of the Collaboration Agreement is to set out the roles and 

responsibilities of each partner organisation and to outline accountability 
arrangements, financial contributions and dispute resolutions.  

 

1.3 Continuing to commission the service jointly with Nottinghamshire County Council 
will ensure advocacy provision is equitable across a Nottinghamshire/Nottingham-
wide footprint and will offer economies of scale and comply with the best value duty. 

 

1.4 A Single Provider Framework will enable the necessary contracts in the proposed 
period, to be called-off to ensure all current statutory requirements in relation to 
advocacy are met. A Single Provider Framework will allow Councils to call off 
individual service requirements as appropriate under the terms outlined in the 
Framework with the provider, without the need for further competition. A maximum 
4-year contract length in each case has been determined as appropriate for the 
services in question.  

 

Nottingham City Council would therefore not be overcommitting nor be bound to a 

long-term financial commitment. This type of Framework also gives the Councils the 
opportunity to call-off contracts in the future that may be necessary to meet new or 
changing requirements without the need for a further competition. Anticipated 
changes are due to the implementation of Liberty Protection Safeguards (LPS) and 
changes to the Mental Capacity Act (2005) around Independent Mental Capacity 
Advocacy (IMCA).  

 

Page 44



1.5 A single provider or a partnership arrangement working on a lead/sub basis 
with a single point of access, will ensure the delivery of a consistent service 
across the City and County. It will also ensure a simpler service offer for people 
requiring advocacy; as well as professionals making referrals, than would be 
achievable through a multi-supplier framework.  

 
1.6 As a service governed by the light touch procurement regime, a Framework 

duration of 5 years is proposed to provide flexibility for the implementation of 
Liberty Protection Safeguards (LPS) and the awaited changes to the Mental 
Capacity (2005).  

 

1.7 A proposed maximum duration of 4 years call-off contract, towards the end of 
the 5 years would allow for full implementation of the above changes and for 
the provider along with all stakeholders to embed the new practices and the 
opportunity to measure early indicators of impact. As the advocacy services are 
a statutory regulation, this duration offers stability to the market and the ability 
to award call off contracts to enable a consistent approach.  

 
2. Background (including outcomes of consultation) 

 
2.1 The current contract ensures that all local authority advocacy requirements are 

met. Councils have a statutory responsibility to ensure the availability of 
advocacy services for vulnerable adults where:  

 
2.1.1  qualifying patients, who are detained or subject to a community 

treatment order, require support and assistance from an Independent 
Mental Health Advocate (IMHA) under the Mental Health Act 1983 as 
amended.  

 
2.1.2  in certain circumstances relating to decisions about their health or care 

needs, people who lack capacity and have no one else to support them, 
require support from an Independent Mental Capacity Advocate (IMCA) 
under the Mental Capacity Act 2005.  

 
2.1.3  a person who lacks capacity and is being deprived of their liberty, and 

where the best interests assessor is unable to recommend anyone, an 
advocate should be appointed as the Relevant Person’s Paid 
Representative (RPPR) to support the person through the Deprivation of 
Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) process.  

 
2.1.4  a person has substantial difficulty in being involved in the assessment of 

their needs or with care planning or reviews, safeguarding enquiry or 
safeguarding adult review, an independent advocate is required to 
support them under the Care Act 2014.  

 
2.1.5  people who, for a wide range of reasons, find it difficult to navigate the 

health complaints system themselves an independent advocate is to be 
provided, by the NHS complaints advocacy service to help people to 
speak up, express their views and achieve personal outcomes. It is a 
requirement of the Health and Social Care Act 2012 that councils make 
provision for this service.  

 
2.2 In addition to the statutory requirements listed above, POhWER also delivers 

the following: 
 

Page 45



2.2.1 Transforming Care Advocacy which is delivered as part of the 
Transforming Care Fast Track Programme. The programme is 
commissioned and funded by the Nottingham and Nottinghamshire ICB 
but is available to eligible Nottingham City citizens. The latest extension 
ensures this contract expires at the same time as the core contract 
which is the 30/9/23. The value of the transforming care advocacy is 
£40,000pa.  

 
2.2.2 Peer advocacy and support groups which are facilitated by volunteers 

funded by POhWER. POhWER currently have 7 volunteers with lived 
experience of using services who can offer peer support and pick up a 
small number of community advocacy cases that do not meet the criteria 
for the types of advocacy outlined above.  

 

2.2.3 Rule 1.2 representatives is a service which has been provided since 
March 2022 and is similar to that provided by RPPRs but supports adults 
living in their own homes, in supported living or other settings which are 
not hospitals or care homes. This is funded by the City and County 
DOLs teams by means of a spot arrangement.  

 

2.2.4 Changing Futures is commissioned by Nottingham City Council and 
Nottingham & Nottinghamshire ICB from July 2022 to March 2024.       
The programme is funded by the Government. Provides independent 
advocacy for beneficiaries of the Nottingham Changing Futures 
Programme who experience the most significant Severe Multiple 
Disadvantage (SMD). 

 

2.2.5 Support to develop Co-production in Nottinghamshire, funded by County. 
In January 2022, the contract was varied to enable Pohwer to develop a 
bank of people with lived experience to support the County in the design, 
commissioning and reviewing of its services, policies and guidance.     
The value of the work was £35,000. 

 
2.3 A strategic commissioning review of the service was undertaken between June 

to November 2022. The review included analysis of the current service through 
consultation, data monitoring and feedback received from beneficiaries and 
stakeholders identified the following gaps:  

 
2.3.1 Lack of IMHA provision for children. 

 
2.3.2 Underrepresentation of BAME service users across all advocacy 

services whilst nationally, figures indicate black people were 11 times 
more likely to be detained under the Mental Health Act, followed by 
Mixed ethnicity people (NHS,2022).  

 

2.3.3 There is expected to be a greater emphasis on Advocacy in LPS. The 
RPPRs role will be phased out meaning individuals who do not have 
family or friends to act as the Appropriate Person, will require an IMCA. 
The details of this increased activity are difficult to predict as central 
government are still to release further information following the 
consultation on the code of practice.  

 

2.3.4 The Government published a White Paper in August 2021, which sets 
out proposed changes to the Mental Health Act 1983 (MHA). The 
Government proposes to extend the statutory right to an IMHA to all 

Page 46



mental health inpatients, including informal/voluntary patients. In 
addition, changes intended to increase involvement in care planning, 
support people to prepare advance choice documents, give greater 
rights to challenge treatment decisions and increase powers to appeal to 
tribunal may all increase demand on IMHA services. The draft Mental 
Health Bill 2022 was published in June however, there is no timetable 
yet as to when this will be introduced as law.  

 
2.3.5 Anecdotal feedback from people with a sensory impairment has 

identified inequality of access to advocacy services. 
 
2.4  It is therefore recommended the recommissioned advocacy service must meet 

the following requirements;  
 

2.4.1 Able to deliver all the LAs current statutory advocacy requirements and 
be flexible enough to meet any future requirements. 

 
2.4.2 Equality of access to be at the forefront of the provider’s organisational 

values and possessing the skills and demonstrable evidence to do this.  
 
2.4.3 Be independent of the LAs and be free from conflict of interest both in 

design and operation. 
 

2.4.4 The offer should be consistent, clear and easy to navigate and use, 
responsive and provided quickly when required. 

 

2.4.5 Cases closed when an issue is resolved but the service should be 
flexible enough to enable people to continue to access support when 
there are long gaps in a period of intervention. 

 

2.4.6 Staff should work in the most efficient way and reduce travel time 
wherever possible. This will involve the service being delivered by multi 
skilled advocates who are able to deliver different types of advocacy. 

 

2.4.7 The model of delivery should be outcome focused to ensure the 
advocacy provided is delivering better results. 

 

2.4.8 People using the service should have a choice in the way they work with 
their advocate and this will include face to face contact as well as virtual 
options.  

 
2.4.9 There will need to be a single point of access for users, referrers and 

commissioners. 
 

2.4.10 Will need to be flexible enough to meet any future requirements 
 including the changes that will be needed for capacity and roles that 
 will be necessary due to LPS. 

 

2.4.11 People will be supported by one advocate to navigate through their 
 options of advocacy types.  

 
2.4.12 Advocates should be able to reach people across the county in a timely 

 way, increasing efficiencies and reducing travel time. 
 

Page 47



2.4.13 An outcome focused model to deliver better results for people receiving 
 advocacy. 

 
2.4.14 The Advocacy offer to be delivered via a range of means including face 

 to face, telephone and virtually where appropriate. 
 

2.4.15 Advocacy should be delivered to all age groups in all mental health in- 
 patient settings, where there is no other independent advocacy offer 
 available. 

 

2.4.16 Provide social value using volunteers who can support the core 
 contract through the delivery of peer advocacy.  

 
2.4.17 This current service is a block contract, and the value is £908,210 per 

 annum. The County’s contribution is £650,172 pa and the City’s is 
 £258,038 per annum.  

 
2.4.18 Based on national benchmarking, we feel that there is sufficiency within 

 the budget to deliver the full statutory requirements of the service. We 
 need to continue to work with County to determine how to respecify the 
 service, to achieve the outcomes within the current financial envelope. 
 Therefore, we request to retain the current City budget of £258,038 per 
 annum (£2,322,342 over 9 years) to provide this. 

 

2.4.19 We intend to work within the resources available to us and will 
 therefore work closely with the provider to monitor efficiencies.  
 

2.4.20 We are acutely aware of the potential risks associated with the 
 implementation of Liberty Protection Safeguards (LPS), which is 
 anticipated to occur between the end of 2023 into 2024.It is anticipated 
 that additional funding will be required to deliver LPS, yet adequate 
 information and data is not yet available to predict these costs. 
 Furthermore, feedback from the consultation is still awaited and no 
 indication has been offered as to whether the proposed timeline will 
 remain.  

 

2.4.21 The tender marking will apportion marks based on quality and cost to    
 ensure best value.  

 

2.4.22 Regular monitoring will assure the early identification of underutilisation 
 or anticipated risk of reaching capacity in-year. Monthly monitoring 
 meetings will be held to mitigate the aforementioned risks and the 
 continual engagement with the regional local authorities advocacy 
 board to review best practice approaches to spend, modelling and 
 outcomes to further uphold a best value approach to the 
 commissioning of advocacy services.  

 

2.4.23 To ensure that Best Value is achieved, the tender process will 
 incorporate elements for both quality and cost. It is intended that the 
 figures in 2.1.17 will form the maximum contract value. 

 
3 Other options considered in making recommendations 

 
3.1  Not to procure an independent advocacy service for adults. This is not an 

option, as this would mean the councils would fail to meet their statutory duties.  

Page 48



 
3.2 To extend the contract to continue the service with the current provider. This is 

not an option, as all extension options in the current contract have been 
utilised.  

 
3.3 Different services for specific forms of advocacy which would involve separate 

contracts with different providers. This was discounted as it could lead to the 
services being disjointed and small contracts are more susceptible to staffing 
problems and service disruption. There would be limited capacity to flex 
delivery to meet fluctuating demand. 

 
4 Consideration of Risk 

 
4.1 LPS will have a wider scope than current Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards 

(DoLS) and will apply to the following settings: care homes, NHS Hospitals, 
Education Facilities, Independent Hospitals, Supported Accommodation and 
Shared Lives accommodation.  

 
4.2 Feedback from the LPS consultation in July 2022 is awaited. Therefore, the 

impact of LPS cannot yet be fully understood. The changes to the   Mental 
Capacity Amendment Act (2019) will make 16 and 17-year-old citizens eligible 
for support under the LPS framework. Local Authorities will become responsible 
for spending and implementation as well as for provision of advocates including 
new advocates through the hospital. The extent of the impact this will have on 
capacity and resource is presently unknown. The use of a single provider 
framework will allow us to adapt the service provision to meet any new 
requirements.  

 
4.3  The tender marking will apportion marks based on quality and cost to     ensure 

best value. Regular monitoring will assure the early identification         of 
underutilisation which will result in varying down the contract where   necessary. 
This has been done previously.   

 
5 Finance colleague comments (including implications and value for 

money/VAT) 
 

5.1 This service is currently delivered via a block contract for which the existing 
value is £908,210 per annum. The County’s contribution is £650,172 pa and 
the City’s is £258,038 per annum. There is specific budget provision for this 
contract within the Community Care Voluntary Sector Contracts Budget (Cost 
Centre 16040). 
 

5.2 There have been no inflationary uplifts on this contract since it commenced and 
the provider has been able to manage within the existing contract sum through 
managing vacant posts.  

 

5.3 The Mental Capacity Amendment Act (2019) places additional responsibilities 
which will be delivered through this contract. The extent of the impact this will 
have on capacity and resource is presently unknown. Work is ongoing with the 
County to assess these resource implications and this is supported by a 
national benchmarking exercise to determine the anticipated hourly rate for this 
service. Monitoring information has also been used to determine the capacity 
required for this contract. At this stage it is anticipated that additional pressures 
arising can be contained within the existing contract sum and budget. 

 

Page 49



5.4 At this stage the proposed contract does not reflect the impact of Liberty 
Protection Safeguards (LPS) for which guidance and implementation dates are 
still awaited. 

 

5.5 Best Value will be achieved by incorporating both quality and cost elements in 
the tender process as set out in the procurement guidelines.  

 
Mark Astbury, Interim Adult Social Care Adviser: Finance 29.11.2022 

 
6. Legal colleague comments 

 
6.1 Access to independent advocacy ensures that people who lack capacity are 

supported and enabled to express their views and that they are represented in 
the decision-making process. The Local Authority has a statutory responsibility 
to ensure the availability advocacy services for vulnerable adults in the 
following circumstances:  
 

  Under s130A of the Mental Health Act 1983 (as amended by section 30 of 
the Mental Health Act 2007) a local social services authority is under a duty 
to make arrangements for help to be provided by independent mental 
health advocates (IMHAs). IMHAs must be made available to certain 
“qualifying patients” subject to the powers or safeguards in the 1983 Act as 
amended, to provide support in the ways specified in the provisions. 

 

 Sections 35 of the Mental Capacity Act 2005 (as amended) imposes a 
statutory duty on local authorities to make arrangements for ensuring that 
people who lack capacity and who have no appropriate family or friends to 
consult, have access to an independent mental health advocate (IMCA) 
when certain decisions are being made about their health or welfare:  

 
o serious medical treatment by an NHS body (section 37, MCA 2005); 
o the provision of accommodation by an NHS body (section 38, MCA 

2005); or 
o the provision of accommodation by a LA (for example, in a care or 

nursing home) (section 39, MCA 2005). 
 

 Where a person: 
 

o becomes subject to an authorisation under the DoLS scheme under 
Schedule A1 to the MCA 2005 (section 39A, MCA 2005); 

o is unrepresented while they are subject to an authorisation under the 
DoLS scheme in Schedule A1 (section 39C, MCA 2005); or 

o is subject to an authorisation under the DoLS scheme and has a 
relevant person's representative (RPR) appointed under Part 10 of 
Schedule A1, and the RPR is not being paid to act as P's 
representative (Section 39D, MCA 2005). 

  
• Under the Care Act 2014 (s67) where the local authority considers a person 

would experience substantial difficulty in doing one or more of the following: 
 

(a)  understanding relevant information; 
(b)  retaining that information; 
(c)  using or weighing that information as part of the process of being 

involved; 

Page 50



(d)  communicating the individual's views, wishes or feelings (whether by 
talking, using sign language or any other means) it must arrange for a 
person who is independent of the authority (an “independent advocate”) 
to be available to represent and support the individual for the purpose of 
facilitating the individual's involvement in the following: carrying out 
needs assessment; carrying out carer's assessment; preparing a care 
and support plan; preparing  support plan; revising care and support 
plan; revising a support plan; carrying out child's needs assessment; 
carrying out child's carer's assessment; and carrying out young carer's 
assessment. 

 

  An identical duty arises under s 68 of the Care Act 2014   to arrange for a 
person who is independent of the authority (an “independent advocate”) to 
be available to represent and support the adult to whose case is going to 
enquiry or review under section 42 or 44 for the purpose of facilitating his or 
her involvement in the enquiry or review. 
 

  Under the Health and Social Care Act 2012 section 223A local authorities 
are under a duty to provide an independent advocate to help people to 
speak up, express their views and achieve personal outcomes, who, for a 
wide range of reasons, find it difficult to navigate the health complaints 
system themselves.  

 
6.2 Although the County Council will lead on the tender and procurement it should 

be noted that a single-supplier framework arrangement is proposed and would 
be appropriate where the contracting authority is looking to achieve security of 
supply. This type of arrangement may also confer an element of exclusivity in 
favour of the supplier. This exclusivity could mean that the supplier is willing to 
provide the products at a lower cost. 
 

6.3 The services being provided in this instance are healthcare and social services 
and so are subject to the light touch regime in regulation 74-76 of the Public 
Contract Regulation 2015. Under the regime contracting authorities are free to 
determine the procedures applicable themselves as long as they are 
transparent and abide to equal treatment principles. Additionally, the light touch 
regime makes clear that authorities are able to take account in the award of 
contracts factors such as the need for continuity, affordability, availability of 
services and specific needs of category users. The light touch regime is 
intended to allow as much flexibility as possible, and does not include detailed 
provisions prescribing each permitted variation to the main rules. Contracting 
authorities are therefore required to apply their judgement and discretion on a 
case by case basis. 
 

6.4 In any light touch regime process the procuring authorities should consider:  
 

that it is normal for the framework to include an obligation on the supplier to 
supply the relevant services as they are required by the contracting authority, 
however, a contracting authority will not normally want to commit to any 
minimum level of purchase. 

 

A single-supplier arrangement may set out all the terms of the arrangement, or 
may not, in which case the contracting authority can ask the supplier to 
supplement its original tender before it considers whether or not to enter into a 
contract.  

 

Page 51



Following the award of a framework agreement to a single supplier, a 
contracting authority can award specific contracts to that supplier at any time 
during the term of the agreement. Award of these specific contracts must 
comply with the terms of the framework agreement. This means that while 
further information can be requested from the supplier to supplement its tender 
information, the terms of the framework agreement should not be varied, 
particularly any increase in the price to be paid. 
 

6.5 Under regulation 33(3) PCR, the term of a framework agreement should not 
normally exceed four years except in exceptional circumstance where the 
particular subject-matter of the agreement justifies a longer term. There are no 
such prescribed restrictions under the Light Touch regime, however, there 
should be a robust justification for the length of the proposed framework 
agreement and called-off contracts to counter any claim that it constitutes an 
abuse of the PCR 2015. 
 

6.6 The Collaboration Agreement proposed will ensure that the parties approach 
the joint re-commissioning of the services in a structured manner appropriate to 
the complexities of the services under consideration. Legal Service will support 
in the drafting of the Collaboration Agreement as required. 

 
Richard Bines, Solicitor: Contract and Commercial 24.11.2022 

                      
7. Other relevant comments 

 
7.1 Procurement 
 
7.2 The decision to approve a tender process led by Nottinghamshire County 

Council to established a single provider framework to deliver Independent 
Advocacy Services for Adults until September 2032 through a 5 year framework 
with the option to call off for a further 4 years is supported by Nottingham City 
Council’s Procurement Team. The County Council will lead the procurement 
process with input from NCC as needed. 

 
Nicola Harrison, Lead Procurement Officer: People 23.11.2022 

 
8. Crime and Disorder Implications (If Applicable) 

 
8.1 Not applicable  

 
9. Social value considerations (If Applicable) 
 
9.1 In 2021/22 a total of 1,488 people reported improved outcomes in the following 

areas; 
 

  Increased Voice and Personal Control; 

  Improved Opportunities; 

  Challenging Injustice; 

  Increased independence; 

  Had Rights Upheld 
 

Therefore, demonstrating the citizen-level local impact of the independent advocacy 
service achieved between the collaboration of Nottingham City and Nottingham 
County. 

 

Page 52



9.2 The independent advocacy services have proven outcomes which demonstrate 
improved health outcomes for citizens. This subsequently increases the overall local 
health outcomes for Nottingham and Nottinghamshire.  

 
9.3 Improved local health outcomes contributes to socio-economic factors such as 

healthy life expectancy, employment and local economic development.  
 

10. Regard to the NHS Constitution (If Applicable) 
 

Local Authorities have a statutory duty to have regard to the NHS Constitution when 
exercising their public health functions under the NHS Act 2006. In making decisions 
relating to public health, functions we consider the NHS Constitution where appropriate 
and take into account how it can be applied in order to commission services to improve 
health and wellbeing.  

 
11. Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) 

 
11.1 An EIA has commenced and will be completed as necessary.  

  
12. Data Protection Impact Assessment (DPIA) 

 
12.1 An EIA has commenced and will be completed as necessary. 

 
13. Carbon Impact Assessment (CIA) 

 
13.1 A CIA is not required.  

  
14. List of background papers relied upon in writing this report (not including 

published documents or confidential or exempt information) 
 

14.1  None. 
 
15. Published documents referred to in this report 

 
15.1 Mental Health Act 1983 
15.2 Care Act 2014 
15.3 Health and Social Care Act 2012 
15.4 Mental Capacity Act 2005 (as amended) 
15.5 Mental Capacity Amendment Act (2019) 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Commissioning and Procurement Executive Committee – 13 December 2022 
  

Subject: Highways Annual Procurement Approval 2023-24 
 

Corporate Director/ 
Director: 

Frank Jordan - Corporate Director, Resident Services 
Mary Lester – Acting Director, Neighbourhood Services 
 

Portfolio Holder: Councillor Wynter - Highways, Transport and Parks 
 

Report author and 
contact details: 

Mark Bradbury, Highways Contracts & Compliance Manager  
Chris Keane, Head of Highway Services  
 

Other colleagues who 
have provided input: 

Chris Carter / Mark Jenkins 

Key Decision               Yes        No Subject to call-in      Yes           No 

Reasons:  Expenditure  Income  Savings of £750,000 or more 
taking account of the overall impact of the decision 

 Revenue   Capital  

Significant impact on communities living or working in two or more 
wards in the City  

 Yes      No  

Type of expenditure:  Revenue   Capital 
If Capital, provide the date considered by Capital Board 
 
Date: N/A – These Frameworks/Contracts support the delivery of statutory highways 
maintenance function and the delivery of external capital grant funded works. 
 

Total value of the decision: £21.10m 

Wards affected: All Wards 

Date of consultation with Portfolio Holder: 17 October 2022 

Relevant Council Plan Key Outcome:   
Clean and Connected Communities 
Keeping Nottingham Working 
Carbon Neutral by 2028 
Safer Nottingham 
Child-Friendly Nottingham 
Healthy and Inclusive 
Keeping Nottingham Moving 
Improve the City Centre 
Better Housing 
Financial Stability 
Serving People Well 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Summary of issues (including benefits to citizens/service users):  
The purpose of this report is to seek Council’s approval for the provision of future procurement 
arrangements to support Nottingham City delivery of: 
 

1. Statutory Highway Maintenance Works  
2. Highway Improvement and Public Realm Programmes 
3. Specialist Support Services for Highways Works 

 
There are currently established framework arrangements in place to support highways delivery, 
but considering the forecast of planned work activity in future years it is essential that additional 
frameworks are established commencing in 2023/24.  
 
In preparation of this and to ensure continuity in procurement compliance for delivery in future 
years, additional new contracts, and framework arrangements (without commitment to spend) will 
be required to be put in place.  

Page 55

Agenda Item 6



 
In addition, there are requirements for approval to access third party frameworks for essential 
services for Highways. 
  
Approval is sought to put procurement arrangements in place for the following essential activities: 
 

1. Works - Multi-Disciplined Works including improvement schemes, junction improvement 
schemes, safety schemes, city centre improvements  

2. Services – Highway design and project support 
3. Services - Specialist Highway, Asset Management and Project Support  
4. Services - Winter Service Weather Forecasting  

 
It is proposed that contracts are awarded through conducting processes in accordance with the 
Council’s Contract Procedure Rules and requirements under the Public Contracts Regulations 
2015 and where permitted, (provided they demonstrate Best Value), to access existing national 
frameworks.  
 
Contracts are anticipated to utilise the National Engineering Council (NEC 4) Suite of 
Construction Contracts or other industry recognised and accepted terms. 
 
A breakdown of the contract requirements is set out in more detail in Appendix 1.  This includes 
the proposed duration of contracts. 
 
In the operation of any awarded framework agreements, it will be necessary to award call-off 
contracts for individual projects.  To ensure oversight to the operation of any framework and 
subsequent call-off arrangements, this report proposes that the responsibility be delegated at an 
operational level to the Contracts and Compliance Manager for Highways. 
 

Exempt information:  None 

Recommendations:  

1  To approve the procurement and subsequent award of Contracts / Framework Agreements 
as set out in Appendix 1. 

 

2  To delegate authority to the Contracts and Compliance Manager for Highways who will act 
as “Framework Manager” on the awarded call-off from the Framework Agreements as listed 
in Appendix 1. 

 

 
1. Reasons for recommendations  

 
1.1 Recommendation 1 - Procuring Highway Contacts & Frameworks will allow 

Highway Services to continue to compliantly deliver works and services to fulfil 
statutory obligations to maintain the highway and support all Transport Services in 
compliant delivery options. 

 
1.2 The identified benefits of putting these arrangements in place are:  

 

 Continuity in the provision of compliant delivery arrangements for 
highways activities in response to increased grant allocation for 
highways and transport projects. 

 Enabling the delivery of external grant funded schemes in line with the 
timescales of the award. 

 A value-for-money delivery model with no fixed financial commitment to 
use the framework.  

Page 56



 Opportunities for local Small to Medium Enterprise (SME) companies to 
tender for the work.  

 The potential for a local workforce either through direct employment or 
through regional SME sub-contractors. 

 Ensuring the Council complies with its duty of Best Value by going 
through a competitive process to evaluate price and quality. 

 Economies in accessing established third-party frameworks where 
viable 

 The ability to develop relationships with a core set of framework 
providers to the Council and ensure effective management through 
such relationships. 
 

1.3 Appendix 1 outlines the frameworks and contracts required to be approved under 
this decision, including estimated spend over 4-year period. All framework 
contracts have no commitment to spend, and values stated is estimated based on 
current forecasts. 
 

1.4 Recommendation 2 – To have a named officer to have oversight of the 
frameworks and approve any call-off arrangements will ensure that there is 
appropriate and ongoing governance of the spend under, and operation of, the 
frameworks. In addition, to ensure that the necessary authorities and budgets are 
in place on a project-by-project basis before a call-off can be awarded. 

 

1.5 This delivery model has a number of additional benefits including:  
 

 Strong links to our corporate value and objectives through: 

I. Comprehensive compliant financial and procurement 
arrangements. 

II. Provision of real opportunities for local businesses and local 
employment. 

 A highly flexible and responsive structure to accommodate short term 
changes to delivery programmes.  

 Local knowledge available in the planning and assessment of proposed 
works 

 
2. Background (including outcomes of consultation) 
 
2.1 It is essential that the Authority has compliant procurement routes for the 

management and delivery of highway maintenance, construction, design, and 
transport related activities. 
 

2.2 The current Highways Procurement Strategy was approved at Commissioning & 
Procurement Executive Committee in February 2022. Implementation of all named 
frameworks and contracts is well underway, delivered in conjunction with 
Procurement and Legal Services. These arrangements comprise of a suite of 
significant replacement highway delivery frameworks and contracts for a 4-year 
period. 

 

2.3 This further executive decision, to seek approval to procure additional works and 
services contracts, will actively support the Highways Procurement Strategy 

 

2.4 Highways project delivery is forecast to increase from 10m to 25m over the next 5 
years, this is in response to successful transport bids, including, but not 
exhaustive, the Transforming Cities Fund (TCF2) and Active Travel Fund (ATF). 

Page 57



It’s essential to forward plan to accommodate for this anticipated significant 
increased spend between 2022 - 2027.  

 

Through framework use, financial risks of variation to projects are mitigated as 
there is no commitment to spend in any fixed year or over framework period. 

 
2.5 The new contracts will complement the work undertaken by our Employer Hub. 

This is Nottingham City Council’s local employment and training service and will 
help the Council to deliver opportunities for local people while providing a free 
recruitment and training service to meet the workforce needs of suppliers. This will 
benefit not only Nottingham Citizens with job opportunities but our framework 
providers in recruitment. 
 

3. Other options considered in making recommendations 
 
3.1 Not to let contracts - Not having compliant procurement measures in place will 

adversely affect our ability to engage with suppliers and contractors to deliver 
essential highway works and projects, in particular through time limited external 
grant funding.  
 
Further, no effective means to demonstrate compliance with financial and 
procurement regulations for the increased spend in future years by the broader 
Transport Group at NCC. 

 
3.2 To not progress new contract and framework arrangements will jeopardise funding 

and Nottingham would lose out on the opportunity to invest the City, its 
transformation and in local neighbourhoods. It would also fail to demonstrate 
commitment to the Government’s Levelling Up agenda putting at risk the ability to 
secure future capital funding. 

 
3.3 To directly award contracts as opposed to framework contract arrangements that 

have no commitment to value.  This would require commitment to spend at point of 
contract, would not provide the flexibility required for service requirements over the 
period and therefore not provide value for money. 

 
4. Consideration of Risk 

 
4.1 To mitigate this risk, officers will develop risk assessment plans, regularly monitor 

performance, compliance, income, and expenditure, as well as put in place clear 
escalation procedures to ensure that all funding is received, and any potential risks 
are identified and mitigated early. 

 

4.2 The Senior Responsible Officer (SRO) is the Head of Transport Strategy. The 
programme of capital works will be managed by officers within Growth & City 
Development and Resident Services. The Council has a good track record of 
delivering transport capital projects. 

 
4.3 All delivery will be under an established project governance structure reporting into 

the Capital Board. The governance structure has defined reporting lines and a 
clear decision-making process.  

 

4.4 Through the establishment of frameworks, the financial risks of variation to projects 
are mitigated as there is no commitment to spend in any fixed year or over 
framework period. Equally frameworks provide a robust, compliant means to 
engage the market to support on project delivery within budgetary and grant 
timelines.  

Page 58



 
5. Finance colleague comments (including implications and value for 

money/VAT) 
 

5.1 This framework will be managed through an established framework board in order 
that contractors are commissioned proficiently to align with current NCC financial 
regulations. 

 
5.2  The impact on capital and revenue funded works is provided through a mix of 

internal resources and external contractors procured through the framework. 
 
5.3 The capital projects will require separate approval if amendments or additions to 

the approved Capital Programme are required. If this occurs the Capital Board will 
be required to endorse the changes prior to the Council contractually committing.  
Further financial advice will be provided if additional approval is required.  

 
5.4  The use of contractors will be limited annually to that expenditure which is agreed 

in the NCC capital programme budget and revenue maintenance budgets. 
 
5.5  A summary of the estimated expenditure over 4 years is provided in Appendix 1. At 

this stage it is not possible to break down this information further by financial year. 
 
5.6 There is no financial commitment to use the frameworks therefore there is minimal 

risk to NCC and significant assurance for procurement and financial compliance 
through the period. 

 
5.7  Supplies of Building & Construction Services falling within the Construction 

Industry Scheme definition are subject to the Domestic Reverse Charge rules. The 
Council will need to ensure that the framework contains suitable provisions to 
enable it to demonstrate that it has taken reasonable care to ensure that it and any 
contractors used are compliant with these requirements. 

 
5.8  The Off Payroll Working Regulations, also known as IR35, were extended to the 

private sector from April 2021; the Council is required to ensure that it has 
processes in place to ensure compliance with these regulations. These should 
include a requirement for contractors engaged from this framework to notify the 
Council of any workers within their supply chain engaged on an Off Payroll basis 
so that the required Employment Status checks can be made. 
 
Thomas Straw, Senior Accountant (Capital Programmes) & Gary Robbins, Senior 
Accountant Tax - 12/10/2022 
 

6. Legal colleague comments 
 
6.1 There are no significant legal concerns arising from the recommendations set out 

in this report.  The recommendations are asking for authority to procure or access 
compliant framework agreements to provide and/or support the delivery of a range 
of highways related services over a 4-year period.  The most suitable contracting 
arrangements and procurement processes will be determined in consultation with 
the Corporate Procurement Team and, where required, Legal Services. In any 
event, they must be in accordance with the Council’s Constitution and relevant 
laws, including the Public Contract Regulations 2015. 

 
6.2 It is understood that the value of £21.10m is the indicative maximum spend to be 

awarded under those contracts over the duration of the frameworks rather than a 
budget approval for £21.10m to be committed to those services.  Any call-off Page 59



contract placed under the framework must have an approved budget against it – 
whether as part of a departmental budget for services provided (as is likely to be 
the case for most call-offs made by Highway Services) - or through a project 
specific approval for example where Highway Services are delivering services 
against a funded scheme.  Where a budget is in place then any awarding officer 
may be required to complete an Operational Executive Decision-Making Form in 
accordance with Constitutional requirements. 

 
6.3 Recommendation 2 is to provide a smooth mechanism to place orders under the 

procured frameworks, without seeking any further approval to award or enter into a 
contract (subject to budget availability as per 6.2 above).  To have authority 
delegated to the Contracts & Compliance Manager for Highways who will act as a 
Framework Manager should be an appropriate mechanism as they will have full 
oversight as to the operation of the contracts and will ensure that call-off 
arrangements are made compliantly under the terms of the framework and meet 
the requirements imposed by the Council’s Constitution.  Where an officer is 
awarding a contract, it must be in accordance with any financial authorities they 
have been granted under the Council’s Constitution, however the proposed 
delegation will mean that the Framework Manager can award a call-off for any 
value where they have been provided evidence that there is a budget in place and 
approved.  Regard must be had to the Council’s Constitution, and specifically the 
Contract Procedure Rules regarding the execution of contracts for certain values.  
Where a contract is required to be executed under the Council’s Seal – whether 
due to the financial or risk value – then this will need to be executed by the Director 
of Legal and Governance or the Head of Legal Services. 

 
6.4 Where external grant funding is being used, compliance with Grant Funding 

Conditions must be ensured. 
 
 Anthony Heath, Contracts and Commercial Team - 07/10/2022 

 
7. Procurement comments 
 
7.1 There are no procurement concerns with the recommendations set out within the 

report. The procurement team will work with the highways department to ensure 
that all procurement activity delivers value for money and is in-line with Public 
Procurement Regulations and NCC policies including Social Value.  
 
Sue Oliver, Places Category Manager - 06/10/2022. 

 
8. Crime and Disorder Implications (If Applicable) 
 
8.1 Highways Maintenance and public realm improvement programmes improve the 

lives of residents through physical regeneration improving infrastructure for the 
betterment of all. Improvements in physical regeneration makes a material 
difference in reductions in crime and disorder. 

 
9. Social value considerations (If Applicable) 
 
9.1 The overall procurement arrangements ensure delivery of specialist elements, 

flexibility in programming and resource targeting, and opportunities for local 
training and employment by requiring contractors to source staff through the 
Employer Hub. 

 
9.2 The Employer Hub is Nottingham City Council’s local employment and training 

service and will deliver opportunities for local people while providing a free Page 60



recruitment and training service to meet the workforce needs of suppliers and 
contractors. 

 
10. Regard to the NHS Constitution (If Applicable) 
 
10.1 N/A 

 
11. Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) 
 
11.1 An EIA is not required because this is a continuation of existing services. 
   
12. Data Protection Impact Assessment (DPIA) 
 
12.1 A DPIA is not required because there are no impacts on data protection. 

 
13. Carbon Impact Assessment (CIA) 
 
13.1 A CIA is not required because the carbon impact of the projects these frameworks 

support would be assessed on a project-by-project basis.  
 
14. List of background papers relied upon in writing this report (not including 

published documents or confidential or exempt information) 
 
14.1  None.  

 
15. Published documents referred to in this report 
 
15.1 Highways and Procurement Sustainable Procurement Strategy (approved at 

Commissioning and Procurement Executive Committee – February 2022).  

Page 61



 

 
Appendix 1 - Highway Services - Spend Profile Forecast 2023/24  

       Highway Services - New Contract Requirements 

Works Category Category  Works Description 
Existing 

Framework 
Arrangements 

Existing 
Framework 
value (£m) 

Additional 
Framework 

arrangements 
for approval (£m) 

 

1 
Multi-Disciplined 
Framework 

Works 

Improvement schemes, junction 
improvement schemes, safety schemes, 
city centre improvements 
 

CPU4622  10.0 15.0 
 

2 
Highway Design/Project 
Support Framework 

Services  
Design and Project expertise to support 
highway design functions 

CPU4673  0.40 3.0 
 

      
18.0 

 

       
 

Highway Services - Access Requirements to Third Party Frameworks 
 

Works Category Category  Existing National Frameworks 
Existing 

Framework 
Arrangements 

Existing 
Framework 
value (£m) 

Replacement 
Framework 

arrangements 
for approval (£m) 

 

 

1 
Specialist Highway, 
Asset Management and 
Project Support 

Services  

Various national frameworks including but 
not limited to ESPO (Public Sector 
Procurement)  
 

CPU4673 
(2023 expiry) 

0.40 2.50 
 

2 
Winter Service Weather 
Forecasting 

Services  
ESPO Weather Forecasting Services 
Framework  
 

CPU3122  
(2023 expiry) 

0.40 0.60 
 

      
3.10 

 

       
 

   
Total Forecast Spend (£m)     21.10 

 

P
age 62


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	4 Corporate review of VCS and Financial Vulnerability grants - key decision
	Enc. 1 for Corporate review of VCS and Financial Vulnerability grants
	Enc. 2 for Corporate review of VCS and Financial Vulnerability grants
	Enc. 3 for Corporate review of VCS and Financial Vulnerability grants

	5 Recommissioning of Independent Advocacy Services for Adults - key decision
	6 Highways Annual Procurement Approval 2023-24 - key decision

